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(2008), and subsection 627.351(6)(a)(6), Florida Statutes (2011), and to prevent
Defendants from taking any action against Plaintiffs pursuant to these provisions.'

JURISDICTION, PARTIES & VENUE

1. Jurisdiction. This is an action for declaratory and injunctive relief.
The court has jurisdiction pursuant to section 86,011, Florida Statutes.

2. Plaintiffs: Plaintiffs are public adjusting companies which employ
licensed public adjusters to assess damage to property for insured property owners,
prepare estimates of such damage, submit claims to insurance companies for
insureds, and represent insured property owners in the negotiation and settlement
of insurance claims for property damage.

a. East Coast Public Adjusters, Inc. (“East Coast”) is a corporation

existing under the laws of the State of Florida, and a “public adjuster” as

defined in section 627.854(1). East Coast has its principal place of business
in Miami-Dade County. East Coast has been in business for 24 years, and
employs approximately 14 licensed public adjusters.

b.  Premier Public Adjusting, Inc. (“Premier”) is a corporation existing

under the laws of the State of Florida, and a “public adjuster” as defined in

: Except as otherwise designated, all references to statutes in this Complaint

will be made to statutory subsections without restating “Florida Statutes” or the
applicable year of enactment.
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section 626.854(1). Premier has its principal place of business in Miami-

Dade County. Premier has been in business for 9 years, and employs

approximately 3 licensed public adjusters.

3. Defendants. The Chief Financial Officer and the Department of
Financial Services (collectively “the Department”) are charged with the regulation
of insurance adjusters, and the enforcement of state laws governing insurance
adjusters, pursuant to section 626.016(1).

a. Jeff Atwater is the Chief Financial Officer of the state as defined in

section 17.001, and the head of the Department of Financial Services

pursuant to section 20.121(1).

C. The Department of Financial Services is the agency of the state

charged with the administration of the state’s insurance laws pursuant to

sections 624.01, 624.05, and 624.307(1).

4. Venue. Venue is proper in this court because the defendants and all of

the actions giving rise to this cause of actions occurred in Leon County, Florida.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS
5. Public Acﬁusfers. Following an event which causes damage to
property, property owners are often unfamiliar with the intricacies of their
insurance policies, the process for filing timely claims, and the procedures

employed by their insurance companies for assessing a loss, and are ill-equipped to
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deal effectively with adjusters employed or hired by their insurers. State licensed
public adjusters provide a valuable public service to property owners by helping
them assess their losses, file claims with their insurers, and represent their interests
in securing full and fair compensation for their losses.

6. Regulation of Public Adjusters. Public adjusters are regulated by
Chapter 626, Florida Statutes, entitled “Insurance Field Representatives and

Operations.” Public adjuster” is defined in section 626.854(1) as:

any person, except a duly licensed attorney at law . . . who, for money,
commission, or any other thing of value, prepares, completes, or files
an insurance claim form for an insured or third-party claimant, or
who, for money commission or any other thing of value, acts or aids
in any manner on behalf of an insured or third-party claimant in
negotiating for or effecting the settlement of a claim or claims for loss
or damage covered by an insurance contract or who advertises for
employment as a an adjuster of such claims, and also includes any
person who, for money, commission, or any other thing of value,
solicits, investigates, or adjusts such claims on behalf of any such
public adjuster.

7. Civil and Criminal Penalties. Florida law governing public insurénce
adjusters includes a wide array of consumer protections as well as civil and
criminal penalties for public insurance adjusters who violate those laws. The
statutes and administrative regulations governing Florida public insurance
adjusters protect the public in the following ways:

a. Public insurance adjusters must hold permanent licenses to practice

within the state;
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b. Unlike some states, Florida does not issue emergency licenses to public
insurance adjusters;

c. A licensed public insurance adjuster must pass a written examination,
post a $50,000 surety bond, and complete 24 hours of biennial continuing
education;

d. Public insurance adjusters may not act as contractors with their clients, or
have financial interests in contracting or salvaging firms that do business
with those clients;

e. All insurance adjusters are subject to a state code of ethics that bars
negotiating with claimants or witnesses who are suffering from shock,
serious mental or emotional distress, or trauma associated with their loss;

f.  Public-adjuster contracts must conform to state requirements, must
include anti-fraud provisions, and are subject to unfair and deceptive trade
practices laws;

g. Public insurance adjusters are prohibited from giving loans or financial
advances to clients or prospective clients, and from giving merchandise
worth more than $25 as an advertisement or inducement to contract; and

h.  Contracting with a public insurance adjuster does not remove a

claimant’s right to participate in the adjustment of his or her claim.
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Licensed public adjusters are subject to fines and penalties for failing to
abide by the requirements of Chapter 626, pursuant to sections 626.601, 626.681,
and 626.8698, and their licenses are subject to revocation, suspension, or
termination pursuant to sections 626.611 and 626.621.

8. Administrative Regulations. Florida public insurance adjusters also
are governed by administrative regulations promulgated by DFS.  The
administrative regulations include a code of ethics which requires, in part, that all
insurance adjusters place the interests of claimants above their own, treat all
claimants fairly, and refrain from attempting to negotiate or obtain a statement
from any claimant who is or would reasonably be expected to be in shock or
serious mental distress arising out of or resulting from a loss. DFS has statutory
authority to deal with unethical conduct or fraudulent behavior by public adjusters.

9. Disciplinary Actions Against Public Adjusters. There has not been
any significant number of actions against public adjusters. Indeed, the vast
majority of disciplinary actions taken by DFS against licensed public insurance
adjusters over the past five fiscal years have been for administrative and technical

violations, such as failure to timely post a bond.

THE RECENT HISTORY OF PUBLIC ADJUSTER REGULATION
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10.  The 2007 Task Force Recommendation. In 2007, the Florida
Legislature created a Task Force on Citizens Pl'ﬁpelty Insurance Claims Handling
and Resolution (“the Task Force”) to “make recommendations to the legislature
and executive branch relating to the appropriate handling, service and resolution
of the open 2004-05 hurricane claims of Citizens Property Insurance
Corporation.” See House of Representatives Staff Analysis of 2008 CS/CS/House
Bill 661, dated April 21, 2008 (“Staff Analysis”) at 1, a copy of which is attached
as Exhibit 1.

Through its review of claims against Citizens Property Insurance
Corporation, the Task Force “became aware of the impact that public adjusters
have on the claims process.” Id. The Task Force found that “the current laws do
not adequately protect consumers from unscrupulous public adjusters,” some of
whom are “not properly trained or qualified,” and who “charge exorbitant fees
which oftentimes were not apparent to insured because such fees were not
prominently displayed in the public adjuster contract.” Id.

To combat these perceived problems, the Task Force proposed a number of
changes to the laws governing public adjusters. Id.

11.  The 2008 legislative amendments to public adjuster law. In 2008, the
Legislature adopted amendments to the law governing public adjusters, including a
provision restricting public adjusters from contact with policyholders for 48 hours.

See 626.854(6), Fla. Stat. (2008).
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Subsection 626.854(6) has since been found to be an unconstitutional
restriction on commercial speech. See Atwater v. Kortum, No. SC11-133, 2012
W1, 2579677 (Fla. July 5, 2012).

Subsection 626.854(11)(b) was also amended to read:

A public adjuster may not charge, agree fo, or accept any
compensation, payment, commission, fee, or other thing of value in
excess of:
1. Ten percent of the amount of insurance claim payments
by the insurer for claims based on events that are the subject of
declaration of a state of emergency by the Governor. This
provision applies to claims made during the period of 1 year
after the declaration of emergency.

2. Twenty percent of the amount of all other insurance
claim payments.
(emphasis added).

12. A fee cap of 10% is unreasonably low particularly when relatively
small claims are involved, The 10% fee cap was imposed without any factual basis
or consideration of its impact on public adjusters and policyholders. Particularly
with respect to small claims, there may not be an incentive for public adjusters to
provide the service that may be even more important to the policyholders who
suffer the loss.

13. A fee cap of 10% during the declared "state of emergency” period is
not rationally related to a legitimate state interest. There is no difference between
work done by a public adjuster during the onc year period after a state of
emergency is declared, and the work done by a public adjuster afier the one year
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period has expired. Therefore there is no rational basis for making the increased
10% fee cap dependent on the declaration of a state of emergency.

14.  The statute is overboard because the fee cap is triggered by the
Governor's subjective power to declare a “state of emergency.” The Governor’s
power to declare a state of emergency under Section 252,36, Fla. Stat. is devoid of
any standards or guidelines, and is entirely subjective. Section 252.36, in relevant
part, states as follows:

A state of emergency shall be declared by executive order or

proclamation of the Governor if she or he finds an emergency has
occurred or that the occurrence or the threat thereof is imminent.

Section 252.34 (3), Fla. Stat. defines “emergency” to mean:

any occurrence, of threat thereof, whether natural, technological, or

manmade, in war or in peace, which results or may result in

substantial injury or harm to the population or substantial damage to

or loss of property.

The definition of “emergency” has no connection with incidents of property
damage, and allows a state wide declaration to impose a fee cap when only a small
portion of the state is impacted. Because the entire measure is so broad, and the
Governor’s power to declare a state of emergency so subjective, the fact that the
statutory fee cap is contingent on such a declaration by the Governor renders the

statute unconstitutionally overbroad on its face.  Moreover, the fact that the

legislative fee cap is triggered by a Governor-declared state of emergency,
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amounts to an improper delegation of legislative power to the executive branch in
violation of Article II, Section 3, Constitution of Florida.

For example, the statutory fee cap on public adjusters can be triggered by
events having absolutely nothing to do with property loss--such as acts of
terrorism, or health code violations. And even when property loss is involved, a
state of emergency may be declared across the whole state due to an event--such as
a hurricane or tornado--that only impacts a portion of the state.

15.  The Commissioner of the Office of Insurance Regulation's Power to
Modify or Suspend a Governor-Declared State of Emergency. Pursuant to Section
252.63, the Commissioner of the Office of Insurance Regulation ("OIR") has the
power to modify or suspend a Governor declared state of emergency:

(1) When the Governor declares a state of emergency pursuant to s.
252.36, the commissioner may issue one or_ more general
orders_applicable to all insurance companies, entities, and
persons, as defined in s. 624.04, that are subject to the Florida

Insurance Code and that serve any portion of the area of the
stat under the state of emergency.

(2) An order issued by the commissioner under this section
becomes effective upon issuance and continues for 120 days unless
terminated sooner by the commissioner. The commissioner may
extend an order for one additional period of 120 days if he or she
determines that the emergency conditions that gave rise to the
initial order still exist. By concurrent resolution, the Legislature
may terminate any order issued under this section.

(3) The commissioner shall publish in the next available
publication of the Florida Administrative Weekly a copy of the text
of any order issued under this section, together with a statement
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describing the modification or suspension and explaining how

the modification or suspension will facilitate recovery from the

emergency.
(emphasis added). The Legislature has given no guidance or standards for the
exercise of this power and it is an unconstitutional delegation of power under
Article TI, Section 3, Constitution of Florida.

Since Section 626.854(11)(b)’s enactment, no OIR‘Commissioner has ever
issued an order modifying or suspending the fee cap applicable to public adjusters
during a governor-declared state of emergency.

Once again, however, the very fact that the legislative fee cap can be
modified or suspended by the actions of an executive official, confirms that the
statutory fee cap amounts to an improper delegation of legislative power to the
executive branch.

The Citizens Property Insurance Corporation Statute

16. Citizens Property Insurance Corporation. The State of Florida has
elected to enter the private insurance market with its organization of Citizens
Property Insurance Corporation (“Citizens”) that provides insurance to Florida
property owners.

17.  Legislative study of Citizens and Public Adjusters demonstrated that

public adjusters obtain better results for policyholders. In January 2010, the

Florida Office of Program Policy Analysis & Government Accountability
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(“OPPAGA”) published its report that had been conducted pursuant to legislative

complaint as Exhibit 2, was titled: “Public Adjuster Representation in Citizens

Property Insurance Corporation Claims Extends the Time to Reach a Settlement

and Also Increases Payments to Citizens’ Policyholders.”

On page 7 of that report, OPPAGA concluded:

Policyholders with public adjuster representation typically
received higher settlements than those without public adjusters.

Policyholders that filed catastrophe claims in 2008 and 2009 generally
received larger insurance settlements than policyholders that did not
hire these persons. The typical payment to a policyholder represented
by a public adjuster was $22,266 for claims filed in 2008 and 2009
related to the 2004 hurricanes (see Exhibit 6). In contrast,
policyholders who did not use a public adjuster received typical
payments of $18,659. The difference in payments was larger for
claims related to 2005 hurricanes, with public adjuster claims
resulting in payments that were 747% higher. However, as
policyholders pay public adjuster fees as a percentage of their
settlement, their net settlement would be lower than this amount.

OPPAGA report, page 7 (bold in original, italics emphasis added).

This report, attached to this

OPPAGA’s reported increases in settlements by Citizens policyholders who

used public adjusters were such that, even after subtracting the maximum public-
adjuster fee allowed by statute, policyholders still received higher net recoveries.
Moreover, the OPPAGA report concluded that Florida laws governing public

insurance adjusters are comparable to and sometimes more restrictive than laws of

other states.

12

BILZIN SUMBERG BAENA PRICE & AXELROD LLP
1450 Brickell Avenue, Suite 2300, Miami, FL 33131-3456



) ) CASE NO. 2011-CA-842

18. 2011 Legislation relating to claims against Citizens. After receiving
the OPPAGA report, and with knowledge that Citizens policyholders greatly
benefitted from the services of public adjusters, the 2011 Florida legislature passed
yet another law limiting public adjusters’ compensation, this time to protect the
proprietary function that the state had entered by establishing Citizens. Section
627.351(6)(a)(6) imposes a limitation on the fees public adjusters may charge on
claims filed by Citizens Property Insurance Corporation (“Citizens”)

policyholders:

For any claim filed under any policy of the corporation, a public
adjuster may not charge, agree to, or accept any compensation,
payment, commission, fee, or other thing of value greater than 10
percent of the additional amount actually paid over the amount that
was originally offered by the corporation of any one claim.
(Emphasis added.)

19.  The Department has not been able to give guidance as to the meaning
of the statute. Tronically, the very agency charged with enforcing subsection
627.351(6)(a)(6)—the Florida Department of Financial Services (“DFS”)—has
admitted that it is unsure how the statute is to be construed. On September 27,
2011, Representative Frank Artiles wrote an email to the DFS requesting its
position as to what the term “original offer” means, and whether 627.351(6)(2)(6)

should be interpreted to apply to only supplemental claims. See Exhibit 3, email

exchange between Representative Artiles and counsel for the DFS.
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20.  DFS has delegated to Citizens the interpretation of the fee limitation.
Unable to articulate the DFS’ definition of the term “original offer”, the DFS
official instead informed Mr. Artiles that Citizens—the very corporation standing
to benefit from the legislation—is also charged with interpreting the intent of
congress when enacting 626.351(6)(a)(6). Thus, the response from DFS—that the
term “original offer” means whatever Citizens says it means—is nothing short of
an admission that the statute is both vague and ambiguous on its face. This

delegation to the corporation is itself contrary to principles of the Constitution of

Florida, Article II, Section 3.

COUNTI
SUBSECTION 626.854(11)(B) VIOLATES

PLAINTIFFS’ RIGHTS UNDER
THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION
21.  Incorporation. The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 20 are
incorporated in this count by reference and re-alleged.
22.  Dispute over interpretation and validity of statutes. A bona fide and
actual dispute exists between Plaintiffs, on the one hand, and the Department and

the State on the other hand, with respect to the validity of the subsection

626.854(11)(b). This dispute between the parties is appropriate for declaratory and

injunctive relief.
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23.  No remedy at law. Plaintiffs do not have an adequate ren'qedy at law,
and will be irreparably harmed by the Department and the State if declaratory and
injunctive relief is not provided.

24.  Fee caps are placed on public adjusters but not other professionals
and service providers. There are many service providers who are similarly situated
with the public adjusters—roofers, mitigation experts, confractors--yet the
Legislature has placed no fee caps on the other service providers. Similarly,
attorneys who can legally provide the same services to policyholders are not
regulated by the fee cap.

25.  Unconstitutionality of statute. Subscction 626.854(11)}(b) is
unconstitutional on its face, and as applied to plaintifts for the following reasons:

a. The statute deprives the plaintiff public adjusters of their right to be

rewarded for their industry in violation of the inalienable right guaranteed by

Atrticle I, Section 2, Constitution of Florida.

b.  The statute deprives the plaintiff public adjusters of their right to Equal

Protection in violation of the inalienable right guaranteed by Article I,

~ Section 2, Constitution of Florida.

C. The statute restricts the fee of public adjusters based on the

declaration of a state of emergency by the Governor but such declarations do

not impact only emergencies that have implications for property loss,
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therefore the statute is overly broad and violates the plaintiffs’ rights to due
process in violation of Article I, Section 9. Constitution of Florida.

d. The statute restricts the fee of public adjusters based on the
declaration of a state of emergency by the Governor but such declarations
are not necessarily based on events that have state-wide impact, therefore the
statute is overly broad and violates the plaintiffs’ rights to due process in
violation of Article I, Section 9. Constitution of Florida.

e. The fee restriction is based on the delegated authority of the Governor
to declare a state of an emergency pursuant to Section 252.36. Because
Section 252.36 provides no guidance or standards for the Governor's
decision to make such a declaration, section 626.854(11)(b) amounts to an
improper delegation of legislative authority to the executive branch in
violation of Article II, Section 3. Constitution of Florida.

f. The statute denies the public adjuster plaintiffs their inalienable right
to acquire, possess and protect property, in violation of Article I, Section 2,
Constitution of Florida.

g. Subsection 626.854(11)(b)2 imposes an arbitrary, irrational, and
oppressive limitation on fees that can be charged for Plaintiffs’ services as
public adjusters, and denies Plaintiffs the right to contract freely with

members of the public.
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WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request:
a. A declaratory judgment that subsection 626.854(11)(b) is
unconstitutional;
b. A temporary and a permanent injunction preventing the Department
and the State from taking any action against Plaintiffs pursuant to
626.854(11)(b)2; and
C. The costs of bringing this proceeding, and such other relief as is just

and proper.

COUNT IX
SUBSECTION 627.351(6)(a)(6) IS UNCONSTITUTIONAL

26. Incorporation. The allegations of paragraphs 1 through 20 are
incorporated in this count by reference and re-alleged.

27.  Dispute relating to validity of Section 627.351(6)(a)(6). A bona fide
and actual dispute exists between Plaintiffs, on the one hand, and the Department
and the State on the other hand, with respect to the validity of the subsection
627.351(6)(a)(6).Plaintiffs do not have an adequate remedy at law, and will be
irreparably harmed by the Department and the State if declaratory and injunctive
relief is not provided.

28.  The legislation is vague. It is also unclear if the statutory fee
restrictioﬁ applies to all Citizens claims, only to supplemental and reopened claims,
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or 6nly original claims. Moreover, if the restriction is, in fact, intended to cover
supplemental and reopened claims, it is unclear how the fee restriction is to be
applied. For example, in the case of a supplement claim, an “original offer” can be
construed to mean either (i) the amount offered by the insurance company in
response to the initial claim filed by the insured to which the supplemental claim
relates, or (ii) the amount originally offered by the insurance company in response
to the supplemental claim itself.

29.  Public Adjuster cannot determine how to apply the law. Therefore, it
is impossible for a public adjuster to discern exactly when an original offer occurs
for purposes of calculating the 10 percent fee limitation required by the statute. It
is unclear, for example, whether a reservation of rights letter, an oral admission of
liability by a field adjuster, a settlement negotiation in mediation, a written offer
from a company adjuster, an estimate prepared by an engineer, a denial of
coverage letter, or any of the other communications that occur between Citizens
and Florida policyholders during the prosecution of a claim would constitute an
“original offer” under the statute.

30.  Public adjusters working on non-Citizens claims are not subject to the
fee cap. Because the statute only applies to Citizens policyholders, public
adjusters who represent non-Citizens policyholders are permitted to receive a

contingency fee of up to 20 percent, while public adjusters working for Citizens
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policyholders are limited to compensation not greater than 10 percent of the
difference between the amount “originally offered” and the amount actually
recovered. This disparate treatment amounts to a violation of public adjusters’
right to equal protection under the Florida constitution.

31.  Other professionals and service providers do not have fee caps. The
10 % fee cap placed on public adjusters who work on Citizens’ claims are not
applied to other service providers such as roofers, contractors, mitigation
specialists, etc. Nor or the fee caps placed on attorneys who can legally provide
the same services.

32.  The special legislation relating to fees charged on Citizens claims is
unconstitutional, The special Citizens provision is unconstitutional for the
following reasons:

a. It infringes on the public adjusters inalienable right to be rewarded for
industry in violation of Article I, Section 2, Constitution of Florida;

b. Itinfringes on public adjusters’ right to contract;

c. It places an unreasonable restriction on the fee a public adjuster may
charge and constitutes a deprivation of the right of Equal Protection since
there are no similar fee limitations on other service providers (roofers,
contractors, etc), nor on other professionals legally able to perform the same

service {lawyers), or public adjusters working on non-Citizens claims;
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d. Because the statute does not define “original offer”, it is impossible to
calculate when the 10 percent fee limitation is triggered. It is
unconstitutionally vague and ambiguous on its face. It is unclear whether a
reservation of rights letter, an oral admission of liability by a field adjuster, a
settlement negotiation in mediation, a written offer from a company adjuster,
an estimate prepared by an engineer, or any of the various communications
that occur between Citizens and the policyholder during the prosecution of a
claim would constitute an “original offer.”

e. The statute is an attempt by the Legislature to favor a proprietary
function of government and sovereign immunity does not apply in such
circumstances.

f. The restriction on fees does not apply to others who render services to
Citizens policyholders and it is therefore an imposition on the principle of
Equal Protection provided in Article I, Section 2, Constitution of Florida.

g. Subsection 627.351(6)(a}(6) does not advance a significant
governmental interest.

h. Subsection 627.351(6)(a)(6) is more restrictive than necessary to
serve any legitimate public purpose, and is not narrowly tailored to further a
significant government interest. Other less intrusive means are available to

control or prevent any abuse of the public by public adjusters.
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i Subsection 627.351(6)(a)(6) denies Plaintiffs due process of law
under Article I, Sections 2 and 9 of the Florida Constitution.

j. By limiting the fees public adjusters who are retained by Citizens
policyholders may charge for their services, subsection 627.351(6)(a)(6)
impermissibly impairs Plaintiffs’ right to contract and right to be rewarded
for industry.

k. Subsection 627.351(6)(a}(6) does not protect the public health, safety,
or welfare, and does not fulfill a necessary governmental purposes.

1. Subsection 627.351(6)(a)(6) imposes an arbitrary, irrational, and
oppressi\.fe limitation on fees that can be charged for Plaintiffs’ services as
public adjusters to Citizens policyholders, and denies Plaintiffs the right to
contract freely with members of the public.

m.  Section 627.351(6)(a)(6) is unconstitutionally vague and ambiguous
because it is unclear exactly how, when and under what circumstances the
10 percent fee cap is to be applied to public adjusters representing Citizens
policyholders.

n. Specifically, section 627.351(6)(a)(6) provides that a public adjuster
may not charge more than “10 percent of the additional amount actually paid

over the amount that was originally offered by the corporation for any one
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claim.” (emphasis added). However, the term “original offer” is ﬁot defined

anywhere in the insurance code,

0.  There is no basis for treating claims against Citizens in a different

manner than claims against other insurance companies.

33.  Law discourages public adjusters from handling claims by Citizen
policyholders. The fee restriction and the ambiguities inherent in the statute have
the consequence of discouraging public adjusters from entering into contracts with
Citizens policyholders where there is the threat of breaking an unconstitutionally
vague law and because the fee is insufficient to allow proﬁt from industry
(particularly when small claims are involved.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request:

a. A declaratory judgment that subsection 627.351(6)(a)(6) is

unconstitutional;

b. A temporary and a permanent injunction preventing the Department

and the State from taking any further action against Plaintiffs pursuant to

627.351(6)(a)(6); and

C. The costs of bringing this proceeding, and such other relief as is just

and proper.
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Dated: this _‘If day of fesember; 2012.

Respectfully submitted,

Mitchell E. Widom, Esq.
Florida Bar No.: 473911
mwidom(@bilzin.com
Lori P. Lustrin, Esq.
Florida Bar No.: (59228
llustrin@bilzin.com
eservice(@bilzin,com

Bilzin Sumberg Baena Price &
Axelrod, LLP

1450 Brickell Ave, 23rd Fioor
Miami, Florida 33131-3456
Telephone: (305) 374-7580
Facsimile: (305) 374+7593

MIAMI 3275427.5 78683/32246
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SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The law, In 5, 626,854, F.S., defines e public adjuster as any person, except a licensed attormay, who prepares
or filag:an feurence clalm for an Insured ar third-party claimant, Simllarly, the law recognlzes thata public
adjustor represants an insured or third-party claimant in negotlatlons with the policyholder's insurance provider
with the goal of setliing a clalm, A publlc adjuster s hired-and pald by the tnhsured to.act-on his or her bishalf,
The public adjuster fae la-usually a percentage of the clalm payment that the pubilc adjuster Is responsible for
recovering. Publlc adjusters, unllke company employes adjusters, operate-Independently and are not afflilated
with-any Insurance company. Independent and company employea adjusters work forinsurance compenles
and do:hot charge polleyholders a fea. ‘

Buring tha 2007A 8peotal Sagslon, the Laglalature enaclad House Bill 1A which craated and directad the Task
Force on Cltizens Properly Insurance-Claims ‘Handling and Resolution (Task Force) fo make racommendations
fo the leglsiative and executive branches relating to-the appropriate handilng, sernvice and-resolution of the
open 2004/2003 hurdcane claims of Cltizens Properly Insurance Corporation {Cltizens), During revisw of
Citizens humcane clalms, the Task Force became awars of the impact that public adjusters have on the claims
process. The Task Forgs found that while the services of publlc adjusters ean be benaflalal to: policyholders
who have suffered a loss, the current laws do not adequately protect consumers from unscsupulous public
adjuaters, The Tesk'Force heard teslimony that some public adjusters were-not properly tralned or qualfied to
represent Insurads, Also, thess adjusters charged exorbitant tees which oftantimes were not apparent to
Insureds bacause such fees wers notprominently displayed.in e public adjuster contract, Stakeholders also
tastifled that there was & need foran -apprentlce {ype program for public adjusters so that individuals would be
knowledgeabls and experlanced when they becaume public adjusters. In an effort to-tamedy concerns
expressed about abuses by some public adjusters, the Task Force proposed this legisiation.

The bllmakes numerous ohanges to the law goveming public adjusters. The changes relate to public
adustera feas, public adjuster sollcitation and businass practicas, publlc adjusterdioensure, vontinuing
aducation requirements for publlc adjusters, and regulrements for public adjuster contracts, The bill also
aslablishes a public adjuster apprenticeshlp program and license,

The Department of Financial Services estimates there will ba a positive, recurring Impact on the Insurance
Regulatory Trust Fund of $38,500. The depariment alao estimates that there will ba a negative, non-recurring
impact on the-insurance Regulatory Trust Fund of $128,770 for the cost to upgrade tha dapartment’s computer
systems and of $31,000 for the cost to develop unigque publio adjuster examinations, but these costs canbe
absorbed with exsting resourcss,

The bill Is effeclive October-1, 2008, except as otherwiss provided.

This-dooument doss not reliect the Intentor ofiichal position of the 4K sponsar of House of Repressntatives. EXHIBIT
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FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS
A, HOUSE PRINCIPLES ANALYSIS:

Provide limitad govemmoent: The bill provides for more reguletion of public adjusters by the
Department of Financlal Services (DFS or Depariment) and establishes a publlc adjuster apprentice
license oversesn by-the Department,

Ensure lower taxas: The bill provides lleansing fees for public adjuster apprentices.

Safeguard individual {tberty: The bill provides for mors regulation of public adjusters by the
Department and establishes a public adjusier apprentice licanse oversesn by the Department,

Promate personal responsibility: The bill provides for mora regulation of public adjusters by the
Dapartment and establishes a public adjusier apprentice licanse overseen by the Department.

B. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:;
Pubilc Adjusters

Chapter 626, F.5., regulates Insurance fleld representatives and operations. Part VI of the chapter
govarns Insuranco adjusters, The law recognizes varlous types of adjusters, Including public adjusters,
indepondent adjusters, company employes adjusters, and catastrophe or emergency adjustars,
Adjusters can ba further claasified as resldent or nonresldant. Resldent adjusters are thase who reside
In Floride and are licensed In Florida, whereas, nonres!dent adjusters reslde outside of Florda and are
licensed by thelrhome state,

The law assigns the Department of Financla! Services to regulate resident and nonresident adjusters of
all typos; the DFS reports that In.Januar? 2008, Florida lcensed mora than 33,000 reskiant adjustars
and over 36,000 non-resident adjusters.’ DFS officials state that the number of llcensead publlo
adjusters has dramatioally increased since the hurrloanes of 2004-2008, In 2004, there were
approximetely 723 Fiorida resldent licensed publlc adjusters and In 2008, there are 2,414 resldent

licensed public adjusters.?

The law, In s. 826,854, F.8., defines & public ad)uster as any person, excapt & licensed attorney, who
propares or flles an Insurance clalm for an Insurad or third-party claimant. Similary, tha law racognizes
that a public adjuster represents an inaursd or third-party clatmant In negotiations with the
polioyholder's Insurance provider with the goal of settiing a claim, A publio adjuster is hirad and paid by
the insured to act on his or her behalf. The public adjusterfee s usually-a parcentage of the claim
payment that the publio adjuster Is responslble far recovering. Public adjustsrs, unitke company
employae adjusters, operate independently and are not affliiated with-any Insurance company.
Indepandent and company employee adjustars work for Insurance companles and do not charge
policyholders a fea. Public adjustars must presant a $50,000 bond to DFS In order to be licensed, No
bond ls required of company employee or Indapendent adjusters,

After the hurricanes In 2004 and 2008, Chlef Financial Officer Tom Gallagher lasued emeargenocy rules
relating to publlc adjusters. These rules banned pubiic adjusters from requiring-cash up front to adjust
hurrcane claims, #mited publlc adjuster fees 1o 10 percent of the claim amount, gave homeowners up

! Tuformation teeclved from the Depariment of Finanole] Seevices on Merch 3,2008 on fite with the Comymittee ot Insuranos,

? Thera are 395 lioomasd non-resident public adjusters, According to DFS, thero ars 14,948 licensod resident independent adjuaters
(9494 licensed non-rosident independent adjusters); 15,756 licensed resldent company employes adjusters (25,045 Heensed non-
resident company employeo djustors).

STORAGH NAME! h08816,PEC,dag PAGHE: 2
DATE: 42112000




to 14 days to back out of a public adjuster contract without penalty, and prohiblted pubilc adjusters
from demanding or accepting any type of compensation prior o the clalm settlement.

On September 3, 2008, a new administrative rule® regarding publlc adjusters went Into-affact, Whaen
the govemor declares a state of emergency, the rule prohiblts a public adjustsr from demanding or
accepling any type of compensatlon prior to the setilement of the alalm, limits the public-adjuster fes to
10 percent of the esttiement amount or olaim payment, and prohibite a public adjuster from confracting
with any person to help the homeowner on the clalm In return for a fee in excess of the 10 percent
limitation,

There are also administrative rules relating to publlc adjuaters that are (n effect at all times.* These
rules, in.part, address public adjuster contract cancellation, & public acdjuster's actions relating to
businass referrals and actlona:refating to engagement of services of othaer professlonals to help with the
olalnv. Pubilc adjusters must also abide by the general ethloal rules applicable to all types of adjustars.

Task Force on Cltlzons Proparty Insurance Claims Handling and Resolution

During the 2007 Speclal Basslon, the Leglslature enacfed Houss Blli 1A which creatsd and dirscted the
Task Foroe on Gitizens Property Ineurance Clalms Handling and Resolutfon {Task Porca) te make
recommendations to tha laglelative and executiva branches relating to the approprate handiing, sarvice
and resol)u’tlun of the open 2004/2006 huriicane clalms of Oltizens Property Insurance Corporation
(Citlzens).

During roview of Cltizens hurricane clalms, fhe Task Force bacame awars of the impact that publio
adjusters have on the olalms process, For example, representatives with Cltizens testifiad that of thelr
3,300 open clalms which were In-mediation or appralsal,’ at least ninety percent of the Insureds were
represented by publlc adjusters. The Task Force found that while the services of publio adjusters can
be beneficial to polloyholders who have suffered a loss, the current laws do not adequataly protsot
consumars from unscrupulous publlc adjusters, The Task Force heard testimany that eome public.
adjusters-were not properly tralned or qualfied to represent Insurads, Also, these adjusters charged
exorbitant fees which oftentimes were not apparent te insurads because such Toes wera not
proniinently dlsplayed In the pubtle adjuster contract. Stakehaiders alsa teslified that there was a nsed
for & apprentlce type program for public.adjusters so that individuals would be knowledgeable and
experlenced when they because public adjusters. In an affort to remedy concems exprassed about
abuses by some public adjusters, the Task Forca has proposed this laglsfation,

Proposed Changes

The bill makes numerous changes to the law goveming public adjusters, The bill'a changes relating o
public adjusters feas aro as follows:

»  Prohiblts charging mora than:
20% on non-hurricans clalms
10% on hurricane clalms’
+ Prohibits basing a fee for work on a supplementat clalm on the amount paid to the policyholder
on the previous dlaim,
The currant adminisirative rule allows public adjusters to sollclt business and does not place any
restriction on tha solicitation. The bill makes numerous changes refating to public adjustor

3 69B'220»201(5}, FIAICI

4 69B-220.201(4), RAC.

! The Task Force 15 compased of soven mambers, four of whom are appoitted by the Governor, Chicf Financisl Officer, President of
the Benate and Bpeaker of the Flonse of Repreaentatives, Tho rest of the membexs are the Commissioner of Insurance Rogulation, or
dealgnes; Insurance Consumer Advaoats, or designee; end Executive Dirsotor of Cithzons Properly Inanrance Corp,, or designes, The
Task Poroe hn held elght medtings, two fiilie heatliigs ind one informilWarkahizp, — == — — Tommr e
¢ Ke of June 18, 2007,

! Similerto Rule 69B-220,201(5)(b), F.A.C,
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sollcitation and business practices In resldentlal proparty and condominlum asseclation Insurance
claims as follows:

*  Prohiblts sollcliing directly or Indlrectly between the hours of 8:00 pm and §:00 am Monday
through Saturday and all day on Sunday,

* Prohibits sollciling or entering into a contract untl et least 48 hours after occurrence of the loss,
unless contracted By the pollsyhoider,

v Prohibits giving or offeing to give a monetary ioan or advance to a olfent or prospeciive cllent,

»  Prohiblts giving or offering to giva anything with a value In excess of $26 for advertising or as an
inducement to enter info a contraot with a publio edjuster.

* Allows the poilcyholder to cancel a publlc-adjuster's contract without penalty within 3 days of
execution or within 3 days after notifoation to-the Insuranoe company of the olaim, whichever is
later. Howaver, the canceltation provision ls extendad to 5 days during a stats of emergency
end for one year afler,

* Makes It an unfalr and deceptive Insurance trade practice for & publlo adjuster or any othar
peraon 1o clraulate or disssminate untrue, descaptive, or mislseding Information relating to
Insurance,

* Requires that every public adjuster provide a wrltan estimete of the loss to the Insured to asslst
In the subrmisslion of a proof of loss orany other claim for payment of Inaurance procaeds, it
also requires that all wrirtten estimates be retained for at least five. years end be made avelable
ta the clalmant or insured and the department upon raquest,

The biil makes numercus changes relating lo public adjustors leensure as follows:

* Nonresldent applloents must have been continucusly licansed In thelr home state for the past
three years,

» The Department of Financlal Services must oreate a specific examinatlon for public adjusters,
This examination must be different than the one glven to company employes and independent
adjusters,

* Asuspended lkeense or lssuance of & new license o0 a person whose provious licanse was

ferminated for any resson cannot be relnstated unless the person passas the pubilo adjuster
examinatlon before refnstatsmeant,

* No examinafion on workers' compensation or health Insurance is required for public edjusters.

The bill creates a public adjuster apprenticeship program and license with the following
roquirements:

Applicant must be at least 18 years.old,
Applicant must file a surely bond In the amount of 360,000 wih the department,

+ Supervisor adjuster Is responsible and accountable for the acts of the apprantlos related to
clalms adjusting,

» Apprentica must complsta atleast 12 months of employment as a pubilc adjuster apprentice
under the suparvielon of a licensed adjuster,

»  Applicant must submit an affidevit from & proposad smployer confirming his/her employment as
a public adjuster apprentice.

] Thje DFS has authority to discipline publfo adjuster apprentices on the same grounds as a public
adjustar,

The bil amends the sontinuing education requirements for public adjusters as follows:

» PFublic adjusters must take courses that are specifically designed for public adjusters, not
company adjustars,

¢ Coursas for publle adjusters must include Information on dutles and reapons|billties under law _

~and fuigs of the depBrimetit 45 wili &8 6. staidard polley forms.

 Public adjusters do not have to take courses on workers' compansation or hegith hisurance.
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« Non-resident adjusters oan comply by meeting thelr own state's continuing education
requirements If the requirements are substantialiy comparable to Florida's continulng education
requlrements and If thelr own state recognizes reclprocity with Florida's confinuing education
raquirements,

The bili provides requirements for public adjuster contracts as follows:

« Confract for public adjusting servicas must be Inwriting and contaln a statement that notlfiss
conaumers that It is a felony to knowingly and with Intent to Injure, defraud, or decelve any
insurer, file a:proof of loss or estimate of cost or repalr contalning any falge, Incomplete, or
misteading Information,

If the ¢Talm involves & proof of loss, the bill provides the following:

¢ Requlres & proof of loss to conteln a statement that notifles conaumers that It Is & fefony to
knowingly and with Intent to Injure, defraud, or decalve any Insurer, fila 8 proof of loss or
estlmate of cost or repalr contalning any false, Incomplete, or mieteading Information,

SECTION DIRECTORY:

Sectlon 1: Amends 8. 824,601 making & fillng fee epplicable to application for ralnstatement of
suapanded license,

Section 2: Amends 3. 626,015 adding publlc adjuster apprentice to the definition of *adjuster.”
8ection 3: .Amends s, 626.221 relating to examination raguirement; exemptions for adjusters.
Saction 4: Amends s, 626,241 ralatlng to scopa of examination for adjusters.

Saction 5: Amends 8,-626.641 relating to duration of suspension or revocation of a litense or
appointment of an adjuster's llicenss,

Saction B: Amends s. 626,854 relating lo prohibited practices of public adjusters.

8actlon 7: Creates s, 626.8541 defining "public adjuster approntice.”

8ectlon 8; Amends s, 626.886 relafing to publls adjuster's qualifications.

Section 9: Creates s, 626,8651 relating to public adjuster apprentice licensa and quakifications,
Section 10: Amends s. 628,889 relating to adjuster continuing education.

Sectlon 11: Amends 8. 826.8668 relaling to disaiplinary guldelines for public adjueters and public
adjustsr apprentices,

Sootlon 12: Amendsa s, 626.870 relating to relnstatement of a suspended public adjuster license or
appointment,

Section 13: Amends s. 626.8732 relating fo nonresidant public adjuster's qualifications,

Sectlon 14: Creates s, 626.8798 ralating to publlc adjuster contracts and fraud statement.
Saction 15: Creates s. 626.8797 relating to publlc adjusters and proof of loss certification.
Section 16: Provides an effeclive date of October 1, 2008, excapt as otherwise provided.

Hl. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT;.

1. Revenues:
RAGE NAME: W80, PEG.doo PAGH: §
: 2112008




The Department of Financlal Services estimates thare will be & posfilve, recurrdng impsct on the
Insurance Regulatory Trust Fund of $38,500, This estimate Is based on 700 public adjusters
apprentics applications being recelvad annually with fess of $85 ($50 application fes and $5 lconse
appointmant fee) (700 X §6€ = $38,600),

2. Expendiures:

The Department of Financlal Services sstimates that there will be a negalive, non-racuriing impact
on the Insurance Regulatory Trust Fund of $129,770 for the cost to upgrade the depanment's
computer systems-and of $31,000 for the coat to devalop unigue public adjuster examinations, but
theso costs can be absorbed with exsting resources.

B, FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:
None,

2, Expendltures:
Nona,

DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

Persons applylng for a public adjuster license will have to meet more stringent requirements under the
bill. Persons currentiy licensad as puhllo adjusters will have to sign a statameant under oath for proof of
loss, Himit thelr foes, adhare to antl-sollolting provisions, modify contrects to aliow consumers to
terminate such contracts, and meat other regulatory requirements, Individusls desling to be public

|a;d]us;tar apprentices must file a $50,000 bond with the Department, pay fees, and meet other cilterla for
censure,

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:
Nana.

C

-

ll. COMMENTS
A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicablitty of Munlelpality/Gounty Mandates Provision:

The mandates provislon does not apply becauss this bl doss.not: require countles or municipalties
to spend funds or to take &n action requlring the expendiure of funds; reduce the authorily that
municipalitles or countles have {0 ralsa ravenues In the aggregate; or reduce the percentage of a
stato tax sharad with countles or munlcipalities.

2. Other;

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY!
None provided In the bill,

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:
None,
D. STATEMENT QF THE SPONSOR -

No statement submitted.
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V. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL BUBSTITUTE CHANGES

On April 16, 2008, the Jobs and Entrepraneurship Councll heard the bill, adopted four amendments, and
reportad the blil favorably as a councll substitute. The amendmants:
* Revisad the hours and daya a publlc adjuster can sollclt business.
+ Shortaned the time period during which a public adjuster cannot soliclt after a hunicane.
+ Raquired a thres day cancellation period for the public adjuster coniract,
» Prohiblted a publlc adjuater examination ang continulng education courses on workers'
campensailon or healihiinsurance.
» Required publlo adjusters.to give racordad statements snd examinations under oath undet
gpaciiied circumstances.

The staff analysls was updated to reflect the councll substitute,

On April 21, 2008, the Policy and Budget Councll adopted one amendment that removed the requirement that
a public adjuster provide a recorded statement under oath to provide Information necessary to evaluate the
factual bas!s and validity of a clalm and the adjusters related actions. The amendment inserted the
requirement that every public adjuster provida a written estimate of the [0as to the Insured to assist In the
submisslon of & proof of lose or any other clalm for payment of Ineurance procesds. It also requires that all
wririten eslimates be retained for at least five years and be made avalizble to the clalmant or Ineurad &nd the
departmaent upon regueat.

“The staff anelysls was updated to refleot the councll substifute,
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Report No. 10-06

Public Adjuster Representation in Citizens Property Insurance
Corporation Claims Extends the Time to Reach a Settlement
and Also Increases Payments to Citizens’ Policyholders

at a glance

The number of licensed public adjusters in Florida has
grown significantly in the last six years, and the
incidence of complaints, regulatory actions, and
allegations of fraud Involving public adjusters is
generally low. Florida's public adjuster laws are
comparable to and In some cases more restrictive than
those of other similar states.

Our analysis of Citizens Property Insurance Comporation
claims data found that cases took longer to reach a
settlement but received higher payments when
claimants used publlc adjusters for claims filed in 2008
and 2009. Public adjusters represented policyholders
in 26% of non-catastrophe and 39% of catastrophe
claims filed during this period.

Scope

As directed by Chapter 2009-87, Laws of Florida,
this report examines Florida’s regulation of public
insurance adjusters and answers three questions.

1. How does Florida regulate public adjusters?

2. How does Florida’s regulation of public
adjusters compare to that of other states?

3. How frequently do public adjusters represent
Citizens Property Insurance Corporation
policyholders, and what have been their
outcomes on claims processing and payments?

Office of Program Policy Analysis & Government Accountability

an office of the Florida Legislature

Background

Individuals and businesses purchase insurance to
protect their property against monetary losses
that can occur due to both non-catastrophic and
catastrophic events, including theft, fire, and
natural disasters such as hurricanes. When a loss
occurs, policyholders can submit claims to their
insurance  companies to seek  monetary
compensation for their losses.

In general, when an insurance company receives a
claim, it reviews the claimant’s insurance policy to
determine whether the policy covers the loss and
investigates the type and extent of damage to
determine the company’s liability. The company
then estimates the amount of compensation and
pays the claim.

Policyholders that disagree with their insurance
company regarding claim settlements (e.g. scope
of loss, damage estimate) can resolve the dispute
through mediation, appraisal, or litigation,
Mediation is a process by which a neutral third
party helps to facilitate an agreement and is non-
binding, whereas appraisal is a binding form of
alternative dispute resolution used to establish the
amount of the loss. Litigation is a binding
resolution via the court system, achieved through
a negotiated settlement or trial.

An important part of the claims process is
insurance adjusting, which is the practice of
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investigating claims to determine the extent of the
insurance company’s liability. There are three
types of insurance  adjusters—company,
independent, and public.

* Company adjusters work directly for an
insurance company.

* Independent adjusters contract with
insurance companies to provide adjusting
services.

* Public adjusters are independent contractors
that work for the policyholder in settling
claims.

The insurer typically arranges for a company or
independent adjuster to visit the claimant’s
property to adjust the claim. However, a
policyholder may choose to hire a public adjuster
to assist in settling the insurance claim due to
these persons’ expertise in filing claims and
negotiating settlements with insurers.

In Florida, public insurance adjusting has received
heightened attention because of two key events
affecting the state’s property insurance industry.
First, the state was struck by eight major
hurricanes in 2004 and 2005, causing widespread
property damage.! This resulted in an influx of
claims to all property insurers, including Citizens
Property Insurance Corporation (Citizens), the
state-created insurance company.?

Second, the 2007 Task Force on Citizens Property
Insurance Claims Handling and Resolution
examined Citizens claims processing and
identified consumer protection issues related to
public adjuster involvement in claims. The
Legislature created this task force to review and
make recommendations regarding Citizens’
handling, service, and resolution of claims arising

"In 2004, the named hurdcanes were Charley, Frances, Ivan, and
Jeanne, and in 2003, the named hurricanes were Dennis, Katrina,
Rita, and Wilma.

*Citizens Property Insurance Corporation is a not-for-profit tax-
exempt corporation, whose public purpose is to provide
policyholders with affordable property insurance protection. The
Legislature established the corporation in 2002 to serve the needs of
homeowners who could not obtain properly insurance on the open
market. As of September 30, 2009, Citizens had 1,064,287 policies in
force, annualized premiums of $21 billion, and related loss
exposure of $413 billion.
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from the 2004 and 2005 hurricane seasons?®
During its review, the task force identified issues
related to public adjusters, including their fees,
solicitation practices, and training. The task force
cited the large number of new and re-opened
claims submitted to Citizens years after the
hurricanes occurred, which insurers attributed to
solicitation by public adjusters. In addition, the
task force heard testimony that some public
adjusters were not properly trained or qualified to
represent policyholders,

Questions and Answers —

How does Florida regulate public
adjusters?

The Department of Financial Services licenses
public adjusters and investigates complaints
through the Divisions of Agent and Agency
Services, Insurance Fraud, and Consumer
Services. As of June 2009, Florida had 2,914
licensed public adjusters, which represents a

significant increase since 2004. Florida has more

public adjusters than other states we examined
that have experienced declared disasters in recent
years. Complaints and regulatory actions against
Florida's public adjusters are generally low.

Florida's current regulatory system Includes
licensing requirements and various consumer
protections.  Florida’s laws regulafing public
adjusters address licensing, solicitation, and
compensation.  Florida requires applicants for
public adjuster licenses to pass a licensing exam,
have experience or training related to adjusting,
post a 850,000 surety bond, and submit
fingerprints for a criminal history review. In
addition, licensed public adjusters must complete
24 hours of continuing education every two years,

In response to the findings of the Task Force on
Citizens Property Insurance Claims Handling and
Resolution, the Legislature amended state laws
regulating public adjusters. These new
provisions, enacted in Chs. 2008-220 and 2009-87,
Laws of Florida, were intended to enhance
consumer protection. The new provisions

3 Chapter 2007-1, Laws of Florida.
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" require applicants to pass a written
examination;

* require a one-year public adjuster
apprenticeship prior to applying for a public
adjuster license;

* restrict the hours public adjusters can solicit
policyholders to Monday through Saturday
between 8:00 a.m. and 800 p.m,;*

* prohibit public adjusters from contacting or
soliciting policyholders until 48 hours after an
event; and

* restrict public adjuster fees to 10% of the
payment for claims related to declared
emergencies and 20% for all other new claims.

Three divisions within the Department of
Financial Services manage licensing, complaint
processing, and enforcement of public adjuster
laws—Agent and Agency Services, Insurance
Fraud, and Consumer Services.

The Division of Agent and Agency Services
licenses public adjusters and investigates
complaints alleging violations of the Florida
Insurance Code. The division accepts complaints
about licensed and unlicensed agents or adjusters
from consumers, insurance companies, licensees,
and regulatory agencies, including other
Department of PFinancial Services units and the
Office of Insurance Regulation,

The Division of Insurance Fraud investigates
criminal acts related to insurance transactions,
including fraudulent claims and allegations
against insurance agents to determine whether a
crime has been committed. The division accepts
referrals from numerous sources, including
insurance carriers, private citizens, and regulatory
agencies.’

The Division of Consumer Services provides
consumers information and assistance about
insurance products and services. The division,
which also serves as a mediator between
consumers and insurers, accepts and refers

¥ Section 626.854(6), F.5, specifies that this restriction applies to face-
to-face and telephonic canununication.

*Section 626.989(6), £S5, requires insurers and other regulated
entities in Florida to report suspected acts of insurance fraud to the
Division of Insurance Fraud.

OPPAGA Report

complaints relating to public adjusters from other
Department of Financial Services divisions.

Florida provides additional consumer protection
through its Office of Insurance Consumer
Advocate, which represents the interest of the
public in insurance matters. The office
recommends specific actions in regulatory matters
under consideration by state entities such as the
Department of Financial Services and the Office of
Insurance Regulation and appears in insurance
related proceedings conducted by these entities.
The office also performs legal research, obtains
public input, and proposes legislation that serves
the interest of insurance consumers,

The number of licensed public adjusters has
grown significantly in recent years, As shown in
Exhibit 1, the number of licensed public adjusters
in Florida has increased substantially.®* Overall,
the number of licensed public adjusters increased
330% between Fiscal Year 2003-04 and Fiscal Year
2008-09, growing from 678 to 2,914,

Bxhiblt 1
The Number of Licensed Public Adjusters In Florida
Has Increased Substantially Over the Last Six Years

T “Numberof = -~ Percent Increase .
Fiscal Year Public Adjusters .- from Previous Year:
200904 &8 N
20040571 4208 U 743%
2005-06 1,864 - 54.95%
2006:07 2630 . 409%
2007-08 2,755 - 4.75%
2008-09 . ¥ 2914 o BTT%

Source: OPPAGA analysis.

Flotida currently has more public insurance
adjusters than the other states we examined that
have experienced declared disasters in recent
years.” As shown in Exhibit 2, Florida has the

S Because this review focuses on the regulation of public adjusters
qualified to assist with property and casualty insurance claims, only
these adjusters are included in the data reported.

7 We examined the laws of California, Florida, Kentucky, Louisiana,
Missouri, New York, Oklahoma, Texas, Mississippi, North Carolina,
South Carolina, and Tennessee. These states were selected based
on Pederal Emergency Management Agency data on declared
disasters. We also reviewed the laws of Alabama and Arkansas, but
as these states do not license public adjusters, we could not provide
information on them in our report.
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highest per capita proportion of public adjusters,
with about 16 per 100,000 state residents, more
than double the per capita ratio in any of the
other states. This likely reflects the greater

availability of adjusting opportunities due to the
numerous hurricanes that made landfall in the
state over the last six years,

Exhibit 2
Compared to Other States, Florida Has a Large
ube‘r of Public Adjusters

Mumber of Number of Public
T Licensed Public Adjusters per

State - . .-Adjusters in 2009' . 100,000 Residents
Foida 2914 159
‘South Caolifia ~ = T 27T T
Mississippi 152 5.2
Louislana~ ~ " . 204 : 46
Oklahoma? - 183 - 45
Kentucky .~ -~ - ~ 181 - S 42
Texas 676 28
NewYok ~ . -~ 486. - . 24
Tennesses 135 2.2
Missouri: ~ - 1.0
California 321 0.9
North Carollna -~ - = .~ .. 50 .05

! These numbers may include public adjusters that are not licensed
for property and casualty insurance adjusting.

2 The number of public adjusters in Oklahoma Is estimated to be
between 150 and 175; the midpoint of the range is presented in the
exhibit.

Source: OPPAGA analysis based on July 2008 U.S. Census Bureau

population data and information provided by the National

Association of Public Insurance Adjusters.

The number of complaints, investigations, and
disciplinary actions against public adjusters is
generally low. An important indicator of the
effectiveness of Florida’s public adjuster laws in
providing consumer protection is the number of
complaints  filed against adjusters and
enforcement actions taken by the Department of
Financial Services. As shown in Exhibit 3, the
number of complaints filed against public
adjusters with the Division of Consumer Services
ranged from a low of 80 in 2004 to a high of 169 in
2008 and remained below 140 in 2009.
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Exhibit 3
The Number of Complaints Against Public Adjusters
Has Varied Little in Recent Years

Numher of Complaints

161 169
145 y 135

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Calendar Year

Source: Department of Financial Services, Division of Consumer
Services,

The annual number of cases relating to public
adjusters that are investigated by the Division of
Agent and Agency Services has increased from 44
in 2004 to 540 in 2009 (see Exhibit4), These
investigations primarily are related to alleged
failure to maintain surety bonds, fraudulent and
deceptive practices, other licensing violations, and
unlicensed activities.

Exhibit 4
Divislon of Agent and Agency Services Public
Adjuster Investigations Have Increased

600 -
500 -
400 -

300 4

Cases Opened

200
100 -

0 : . . T T :
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2005

Calendar Year
= = Trendline

Source: Departiment of Financial Services, Division of Agentand
Agency Services.
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From January 2004 to December 2009, the Division
of Insurance Fraud received 937 referrals (ie.,
complaints) from numerous sources about public
adjusters,” Because of these complaints, the
division initiated 269 cases and made 31 arrests
during this period.

How does Florida’s reguiation of public
adjusters compare to that of other
states?

Florida's regulation of public adjusters is
comparable to, and in some areas more stringent
than, other states. The 12 states (including
Florida) we examined that had recent declared
disasters typically regulate public adjusters by
requiring licensure. Several states also regulate
public adjuster solicitation and fees.

Florida’s public adjuster licensing requirements
appear to be similar to or more stringent than
those of other states. Eleven (of 12) states we
examined, including Florida, require applicants
for public adjuster licensure to pass an exam and
post a surety bond.” In addition, most of these
states require applicants to have experience or
training in insurance adjusting and receive
continuing education as a condition of licensure.

Florida imposes some licensure requirements not
included in other states’ laws. Notably, Florida’s
year-long  apprenticeship  or  traineeship
requirement is not required in the other states we
examined.” In addition, Florida’s bond threshold
is equal to or higher than that of all other states
we reviewed." Seven (of 12} states, including
Florida, require applicants to provide fingerprints
for a criminal history check.

*The Division of Insurance Fraud classifies tips and other
information reported to the division as referrals. One referral may
include multiple allegations.

? Missouti does not require an exam for licensure and South Carolina
does pot require a bond.

W California, Kentucky, Mississippi, Oklahoma, and Texas laws
include provisions for 6-12 month apprenticeships/interim
licensure.

""The dellar value of surety bonds required ranged from $1,000 o
$50,000. Louisiana, Mississippi, and Tennessee’s laws also require
public adjustess to post a $50,000 surety bond,
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Public adjuster industry representatives reported
that the state’s licensure requirements increase the
professionalisin of adjusters and help prevent
unscrupulous business practices.

Like other states, Florida regulates public
adjuster solicitation and fees. Of the states we
examined, Florida, California, New York,
Tennessee, and Texas restrict some aspect of
public adjuster solicitation. In Florida, the law
does not allow public adjusters to solicit
policyholders until 48 hours after an event. In
addition to the 48-hour waiting period, Florida
public adjusters may only solicit policyholders
Monday through Saturday, between the hours of
8 am, and 8 pm.” Public adjusters in California
are prohibited from solicitation until seven days
after a disaster, and in California, New York and
Texas, public adjusters are resiricted from
soliciting policyholders during specific houts of
the day.

Public adjuster industry representatives assert
that the 48-hour waiting period restricts their
business activities and impairs their capacity to
help consumers quickly and thoroughly prepare
claims; a public adjuster recently filed a lawsuit
challenging the constitutionality of this waiting
period.”  However, consumer advocates and
insurance companies indicated that the 48-hour
waiting period is too short, because policyholders
may be emotionally vulnerable, especially after a
catastrophic event, and thus unable to make well-
informed decisions. Moreover, insurance
company representatives suggested that this
period is inadequate for insurance companies to
prepare and offer policyholders a settlement.

¥ Seclion 626.854(6), 5, specifies that this restriction applies to face-
to-face and telephonic comumunication.

¥ Frederick W. Kortum, Jr. v. Alex Sink.
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In addition, 5 of the 12 states we examined,
including Florida, impose limits on the amount
public adjusters can charge for their services.”* In
general, public adjuster fees are based on a
percentage of the total value of the claim
settlement they obtain. For new claims, Florida
law requires public adjusters to charge no more
than 10% of the amount of insurance claim
payments made as the result of a declared
emergency, and up to 20% of the amount of all
other claim payments,”” Louisiana, Mississippi,
New York, Tennessee, and Texas also require fee
caps, ranging from 10% to 25% of the claims
payment.

Consumer advocates expressed concern about
public adjuster fees, indicating that once these
costs are deducted from settlement payments,
policyholders may not have sufficient funds tfo
make needed repairs. Conversely, public
adjusters asserted that their services assist
policyholders in obtaining higher settlements,
which facilitates the completion of repairs and
replacement of lost property.

How frequently do public adjusters
represent Citizens Property Insurance
Corporation policyholders, and what
have been their outcomes on claims
processing and payments?

To evaluate the impact of public adjuster
involvement on Citizens Property Insurance
Corporation’s claims processing, we examined
catastrophe claims filed between March 2008 and
June 2009 related to the 2004 and 2005 hurricanes
and non-catastrophe claims filed during this
period.” We examined 76,321 claims filed during
this period, including 61,324 non-catastrophe and
14,997 catastrophe claims. The catastrophe claims

" Public adjuster fees are not covered by the insurance policy.
Policyholders are responsible for all costs related to the public
adjusters’ services and generally pay public adjuster fees from the
claim settlement.

3 This limitation only applies to claims made up to a year after the
declaration of an emergency.

' Section 626.854(11)(b)(1-2), F.S, states that a catastrophe is any
event subject to declaration of a state of emergency by the
Governor; all other events are non-catastrophic {e.g. house fires),
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included both new and re-opened claims. New
claims are those that policyholders file for the first
time, while re-opened claims were filed earlier but
are reinvestigated for supplemental payment."”
Re-opened claims may be filed years after an
event occurred, with little restriction on the
timeframe for filing." Over half (7,698) of the
catastrophe claims we examined were re-opened
claims.

In 2008 and 2009, public adjusters represented
many Citizens policyholders whoe filed claims.
Many Citizens policyholders retained a public
adjuster to assist them in filing their insurance
claims. Specifically, policyholders represented by
a public adjuster submitted slightly over a quarter
(26%) of non-catastrophe claims filed in 2008 and
2009, including 24% of new and 54% of re-opened
non-catastrophe claims.” During this period,
policyholders represented by a public adjuster
filed 39% of catastrophe claims, including 19% of
new and 57% of re-opened catastrophe claims.

Citizens’ claims with public adjuster involvement
took longer to close. New and re-opened claims
filed by policyholders with public adjuster
representation took considerably longer to close.
We used the Kaplan-Meier method to evaluate
public adjusters’ affect on claims processing time
(see Appendix A).

Exhibit 5 shows the typical number of days
required to close a catastrophe claim, broken
down by whether a public adjuster was involved.
As shown in the exhibit, when public adjusters
represented  policyholders, claims processing
typically took between 132 to 296 days longer than
claims without public adjuster representation. For
example, when public adjusters represented
policyholders on new catastrophe claims related

7 For example, a policyholder may have incurred roof damage in
2004, notified Citizens of the loss, received a claims payment, and
repaired the roof. In 2009, the policyholder may identify ceiling
mildew near the area that sustained damage in 2004 and file a daim to
repair the damage that originated from the hurricane, although the
initial damage occurred more than four years eatlier.

% There is no statutory limit on when a claim can be filed. Section
95.11(2)(b), F.5, specifies that the statute of limitations for filing
legal action based on a contract {e.g. between an insurance
company and a policyholder) is five years.

¥ Attorneys or other parties may also represent policyholders, and these
are counted as claims in which a public adjuster is no#involved.
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to the 2004 hurricanes, the typical period from
first notice of loss to final settlement was 306
days, compared to 10 days for claims without
public adjuster involvement.” Similarly, when
policyholders used a public adjuster for re-opened
claims related to 2004 storms, the typical number
of days to close the claim was 1,707 days,
compared to 1,511 days for claims without public
adjuster representation.

In general, the re-opened cases in Exhibit 5 were
originally filed in 2004 or 2005, and their lengthy
closure time reflects the time from their date of
first notice of loss to their eventual re-closure, The
typical number of days to final settlement is thus
much larger than for new claims, but the cases
that involved public adjusters showed a similar
pattern of taking longer to achieve settlement.

Exhibit 5
Settlement of Catastrophe Claims Took Longer When
Pollcyholders Were Represented by Public Adjusters

R T 1 A

BT 1 R UL I,

1400 e -
1200 -

& No Public
Adjuster

R i

800

Number of Days

@ Public
Adjuster

2004 2005

2084 2005
Reopened Claims

New Claims

Source: OPPAGA analysis.

Public adjuster representation had the same effect
for non-catastrophe claims. The median time to
close non-catastrophe claims was 115 days for
claims with public adjuster representation and 41
days for those without.?!

#'No public adjuster’ means that policyholders wete either nat
represented by any third party or were represented by an attorney.

BWe could not provide results for new and re-opened non-
catastrophe claims because most of the re-opened claims that were
filed in 2008 and 2009 are still open.
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Public adjuster representation may prolong claims
processing for several reasons. Public adjusters
often pursue the paths available to arbitrate a
policyholder’s claim (e.g., mediation or appraisal),
and may present a larger scope of damages to
assess, which can require more time to settle.
Citizens’ officials reported that public adjusters
represented policyholders in 61% of mediations
and 89% of appraisal arbitrations requested in
2008, Appendix B discusses additional reasons
cited by public adjusters and insurers for why
claims may take longer fo settle when public
adjusters are involved.

Policyholders with public adjuster representation
typically received higher settlements than those
without public adjusters. Policyholders that filed
catastrophe claims in 2008 and 2009 generally
received larger insurance settlements than
policyholders that did not hire these persons. The
typical payment to a policyholder represented by
a public adjuster was $22,266 for claims filed in
2008 and 2009 related to the 2004 hurricanes (see
Exhibit 6). In contrast, policyholders who did not
use a public adjuster received typical payments of
$18,659. The difference in payments was larger
for claims related to 2005 hurricanes, with public
adjuster claims resulting in payments that were
747% higher. TIHowever, as policyholders pay
public adjuster fees as a percentage of their
settlement, their net settlement would be lower
than this amount.

Exhiblt 6
Public Adjuster Representation Typically Resulted in
Larger Payments to Policyholders

$22,266

517,187

8 No Public Adjuster
Public Adjuster

Event Year

Source: OPPAGA analysis. Data refers to the median (50" percentile
or typical) payment,
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For non-catastrophe claims, policyholders who
used public adjusters received an estimated $9,379
on their claim, compared to $1,391 for those
policyholders that did not use a public adjuster
(a difference of 574%). As stated -earlier,
policyholders’ net settlement would be lower than
this amount.

Agency Response

In accordance with the provisions of s. 11.51(5),
Hotida Statutes, a draft of our report was
submitted to the state’s Chief Financial Officer
and to the President/CEO and Executive Director
of Citizens Property Insurance Corporation for
their review and response.

The president’s written response to this report is
presented in Appendix C. The state’s Chief
Financial Officer did not provide a written
response to this report.

Report No. 10-06
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Appendix A

Methodology Used to Assess the Impact of Public
Adjuster Representation on Time to Process Claims and
Payment to Policyholders

To assess the impact of public adjusters on the time it took to process policyholder claims and
the amount of money paid to policyholders by Citizens Property Insurance Corporation, we
compared cases of policyholders represented by public adjusters to cases filed by
policyholders without such representation.

Study population. We evaluated all claims filed with Citizens from March 2008 to June 2009,
for a total of 76,321 claims. Of this population, 21,545 had public adjuster representation.
Our comparison group consisted of the 54,776 claims that either had no representation or
were represented by a party other than a public adjuster (such as attorneys).

Data. For the study population, Citizens provided the data elements noted below.

» Type of representation for the insured (public adjuster, attorney, none)
* Nature of the claim (catastrophic or non-catastrophic)

= Severity of the loss

* Insured value of the property

» Report year

= Date the policyholder noticed the loss

« Dollar value of Citizens’ initial offer to a policyholder

* Last amount paid to a policyholder

* Payment date

» County in which the property was located

Methods of Analysis. Using the Kaplan-Meier product-limit estimator, we estimated the time
for new catastrophe and re-opened catastrophe claims associated with those new claims to
close, relative to whether or not a public adjuster was involved. Some re-opened claims are
related to the new claims in this sample; however, many were first filed years earlier, e.g,, in
2004 and 2005, and re-opened during the sample’s timeframe. Survival analysis statistical
techniques, such as the Kaplan-Meier method, calculate the probability of an event occurring,
such as a case closing, given how much time has passed. The Kaplan-Meier method uses all
claims, whether closed or not, to calculate a median time to close. This technique avoids the
problem of just using closed cases from a particular period, which can underestimate how
long it takes to close the typical case. Data typically refers to the median (50th percentile or
typical) number of days to close a case. However, data relating to new 2004 claims with
public adjusters is a mean, as a median could not be calculated.

In addition, we compared median payments on new and re-opened claims with public
adjuster representation to those without public adjusters, and ran separate models on non-
catastrophe claims.
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Appendix B
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Public Adjusters and Insurers Have Different Opinions
about Factors Affecting the Claims Process

Public adjusters and insurance companies cited different opinions regarding the effect public
adjusters have on the insurance claims process. The following table aggregates the opinions
provided by Florida public adjusters and representatives of insurance companies operating in
the state, including Citizens Property Insurance Corporation.

Relattonship with
policyholders

- Public Ad.justers

Public adjusters are the only advocates that
axclusively represent the policyholder,

Insurance companies attempt to dissuade

__policyholders from hiring public adjusters.

Public ad|iisters insulate policyholders from insurance
companles and create distrust betwaen the insurance
company and the palicyholder,

Public adjusters reduce policyholder retention.

Claims processing

Insurance companies cause delays in setfling claims

due to

= poor communication;

= failure to respond to requests in a timely
manner; and

v gxcassive demands for documentation.

Insurance ¢ompanies impose too much burden on

policyholders 1o prove their claims.

Public adjusters increase the time 1o settle claims when

the!

. g provide incomplete information;

= make it difficult for lsurance companies to schedule
inspections and meet with policyholders;

= make it necessary for Insurance companies 10 spend
additional time investigating and verilying damage
aslimates provided by public adjusters; and

= encourage poticyholders to use appraisal, mediation,
and liigation to resolve claims.

Public adjuster salicitation

The ban preventing public adjusters from contacting

Company adjusters should have the opportunity to settfe

practices policyholders until at least 48 hours after the clalms with peficyholders before public adjusters get
occurrence of an event involved.
*  prevants policyholders from becoming aware of  pupyic adjusters uilize misleading advertising to solicit
thair right to be represented and business with policyholders.
»  restricts public adjusters, but allows
contragtors, roofers and other interested parties
to contact policyholdess.
Ghaims settlement Insurance companies are not motivated to provide full  Public adjusters make it diffieult for policyholders to make

compensation to policyholder since thelr responsibility
Is to sharehalders,

all repairs included In the claim because a portion of the
settlement amount goes to the public adjuster.

Public adjusters increase the cost of insurance for afl
CONsuUmers,

Public adjuster fees

The current fee structure allows fair compensation to
public adjusters.

Tha current fea structure encourages public adjusters to
inflate or falsify claim estimates.

Recommendations

Rescind ban preventing public adjusters from
contacting policyholders during the first 48 hours after
an event,

Establish more stringent enforcement of laws and
regufations governing the public adjusting industry.

Subject public adjusters to an examination under oalh
simitar ko policyholders.

Establish fee limits for supplemental and re-cpened claims,

Require public adjusters to disclose their fee in contracts
provided to the policyholder's insurance company.

Limit the amount of time after an event for policyholders to
file a caim.

Require public adjustess to provide policyholders a copy of
written estimates and correspondence submitted to the
firsurance company regarding their claim.

Establish more stringent enforcement of laws and
regulations governing the public adjusting industry.

Source: OPPAGA analysis.

10



Report No. 10-06 _ OPPAGA Report

Appendix C

CIT_IZENS PROPERTY INSURANCE CORPORATION P o

101 NORTH MONROE STREET, SUITE 1000 W

TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32301 & C”. IZE N S

ToLerHONE; (8501 513-3700  FAx: {860) 513-3000 PRAPLATY ms'um\-r{tt CoRPaNATIOR
January §, 2010

Gary R VanLandingham, Ph,D,, Ditector
Office of Program Policy Analysis and
Government Accountability

Room 312 Claude Pepper Building

11! West Madison Street

Tallahassee, FL. 32399-1475

Dear Dr. VanLandingham:

We have received and reviewed the Office of Program Policy Analysis and Government
Accountability’s (OPPAGA) preliminary report titled Pubie Adjuster Representation in
Citizens Property Insurance Corporation Claims Extends the Thne to Reach a Settlement
and Also Increases Payments to Citizens' Policyholders. . '

Citizens has no recommendations for amendments or additions to this report,
We appreciate the time your staff availed to Citizens and the professionalism they
exhibited in completing this veport. Pleaso do not hesitate o contact Christine Ashburn,

Legislative and External Affairs Director, or myself if you need anything further
regarding this report.

Respectfulty,

Scott Wallace
President/CEQ and Executive Director

cc:  Kim Mills, Director of Auditing, Executive Office of the Governor

James R. Malons, Chalrman, Colllar County
Wiliam P. Gorry, Indlan River Counly o Caret Everharl, Pinellag County & Earl Horlon, Pineflas Cauny
Sheill W. Hudson, Miaml-Dade County & Allan Kalz, Leoa Counly » Carlos Lacasa, Miami-Dade Counly
Thomas Lyach, Palm Beach Counly « Suoll Wallace, PresidentiCEO & Execulive Director
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The Florida Legislature

Office of Program Policy Analysis
and Government Accountability

OPPAGA provides performance and accountability information about Florida
government in several ways.

Reports deliver program evaluation, policy analysis, and Sunset

reviews of state programs to assist the Legislature in overseeing government
operations, developing policy choices, and making Florida government better,
faster, and cheaper.

PolicyCasts, short narrated slide presentations, provide bottom-line briefings of
findings and recommendations for select reports.

Government Program Summaries (GPS), an online encyclopedia,
www,oppaga state.fl.us/government, provides descriptive, evaluative, and
performance information on more than 200 Florida state government programs.

The Florida Monitor Weekly, an electronic newsletter, delivers brief announcements
of research reports, conferences, and other resources of interest for Florida's policy
research and program evaluation community.

Visit OFPPAGA’s website at www.oppaga.state.fl.us

OPPAGA supports the Florida Legislature by providing evaluative research and objeclive analyses to promote government
accountabllity and the efficient and effective use of public resources. This project was conducted in accordance with applicable
evaluation standards. Gopies of this report in print or alternate accessible format may be obtained by telephone (850/488-0021), by
FAX {850/487-3804), in parson, or by mail (OPPAGA Report Production, Claude Pepper Building, Reom 312, 111 W, Madison St.,
Tallahasses, FL 32399-1475). Cover photo by Mark Foley.

Project suparvised by Kara Collins-Gomez {850/487-4257)
Project conducted by Jeanine Brown (850/487-4256}, Emily Leventhal (850/487-9239), and Larry Novey (850/487-3768)
Gary R. VanLandingham, Ph.D., OPPAGA Director
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Subject: FW: Response from the Florida Department of Financial Services

From: Laura Anstead <Laura Anstead@myfioridacfo.com>

Date: December 23, 2011 10:28:35 AM EST

To: 'Frank Artiles' <frankartiles@me.com>

Cc: Ashley Mayer <Ashley.Maver@myfloridacfo.com>, Greg Thomas
<Gred.Thomas@myfloridacfo.com>

Subject: RE: Response from the Florida Department of Financial Services

Representative Artiles,

I apologize for not responding to your most recent e-mail of December 13, 2011. [ have been out of the office
for surgery since December 12",

I have cut and pasted your questions below and have provided you with answers in bold face type.

I hope that you and your family have a wonderful Holiday Season!

1) T'would like to know what DFS believes or defines as "an original offer"? The first offer made by
Citizens. As this statute is only applicable to Citizen’s, Citizen’s would be in the best position to
answer this question more completely.

2) Isanoriginal offer: written, verbal, settlement offer, supplemental, appraisal? It would be an original
offer in whatever form or manner Citizen’s considers it to be an “original offer”.

3) Who is authorized to make the "original offer"? Independent Field adjuster, Company Adjuster,

' Engineer, Citizens Examiner, Attorney or anyone affiliated with Citizens? The original offer would be
made by whomever Citizens indicates has the authority to give such an offer.

4) Please explain your statement, "the difference between the original offer made by Citizens and the
amount actually paid"? By your own interpretation, if no original offer was made by Citizens or amount
actually paid then you cannot limit the amount to 10%. Please explain. If no payment is made, there is
no payment to assess a fee against. If Citizens never makes an offer but makes a payment on the
claim then that is considered by default to be the “original offer” and the public adjuster would be
limited to a 10% fee on any additional claim payments made after that initial payment.

5) Is the Department of Financial Services regulating Appraisal? No.

6) Your statement: "between the original offer made by Citizens and the amount actually paid ". Does this
include supplemental offer, appraisal, mediation, umpire final awards? Yes, if the company actually
pays. can the Department of Financial Services expand its regulation of an unregulated industry such as
Appraisal without clear Legislative intent? I should know, I tried to License Appraisal and Umpires and
was told that DFS didn't want to start a cottage industry. This DFS interpretation gives the Department
expansive regulatory powers which were never given by the Legislature or in Statute. Appraisal is a
process utilized to help determine the value of a claim in an effort to resolve a claim for all

interested parties. The Department does not determine nor regulate fees paid to the appraiser or
umpire,

Best wishes,

EXHIBIT

Laura ' 5
1
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From: Frank Artiles [mailto:frankartiles@me.com]
Sent: Tuesday, December 13, 2011 11:13 PM
To: Laura Anstead

Subject: Re: Response from the Florida Department of Financial Services
Importance: High

Ms. Anstead,

Please provide me with a timeline to the requested questions.
Thank you and Happy Holidays.

Frank Artiles

State Representative District 119
305-305-2110

On Dec 2, 2011, at 5:46 PM, Laura Anstead wrote:

Representative Artiles,

Thank you for your inquiry, We appreciate your interest and are thoughtfully considering your questions.
t will contact you next week in response to your questions and concerns.

I hope you have a great weekend.

Laura

From: Frank Artiles [mailto:frankartiles@me.com]

Sent: Friday, November 25, 2011 12:20 PM

To: Laura Anstead

Cc: Greg Thomas; Ashley Mayer

Subject: Re: Response from the Florida Department of Financlal Services

Ms. Anstead,

Thank you fot your prompt response regarding my original email. [ have concerns regarding the following
statements in your response: (highlighted in red)

"A review of this language reveals that Section 627.351(6)}{a)(6) is not, by its language, limited to supplemental
claims. Thus, it is the Department’s belief that based upon the plain language of the statute, a public adjuster,

when handling Citizens’ claims, is limited to receiving 10% of the difference between the original offer made by
Citizens and the amount actually paid regardless of when the public adjusting contract was executed.

t would like the Department of Financial Services to answer the following questions regarding their belief,
definitions or interpretations.



1) I would like to know what .5 believes or defines as "an origina! offer: )

2) Is an original offer: written, verbal, settlement offer, supplemental, appraisal?

3) Who is authorized to make the "original offer"? independent Field adjuster, Company Adjuster, Engineer,
Citizens Examiner, Attorney or anyone affiliated with Citizens?

4) Please explain your statement, “the difference between the original offer made by Citizens and the amount
actually paid"? By your own interpretation, if no original offer was made by Citizens or amount actually paid then
you cannot limit the amount to 10%. Please explain.

5) Is the Department of Financial Services regulating Appraisal?

6) Your statement: "between the original offer made by Citizens and the amount actually paid *. Does this include
supplemental offer, appraisal, mediation, umpire final awards?

7) How can the Department of Financial Services expand its regulation of an unregulated industry such as Appraisal
without clear Legislative intent? | should know, | tried to License Appraisal and Umpires and was told that DFS
didn't want to start a cottage industry. This DFS interpretation gives the Department expansive regulatory powers
which were never given by the Legislature or in Statute.

You are probably unaware of this but there was an amendment withdrawn by the SB 408 Bill Sponsor on the house
floor which specifically stated that public adjusters are limited to 10% on all citizens claims. | find it odd that it was
withdrawn yet DFS implements it through interpretation. It would be much easier to say that the bill is ambiguous
and vague at best but instead it is being enforced by DFS.

Thank you again,

Frank Artiles
State Representative District 119
305-305-2110

On Oct 13, 2011, at 12:23 PM, Laura Anstead wrote:

Dear Representative Artiles,

Thank you for your email correspondence of September 27*, which has been referred to me for response. In your email,
you express your belief that Section 627.351{6)(a)(6), Florida Statutes only relates to “supplemental or excess” claims
and that it does not prevent public adjusters from obtaining a 20% fee when the public adjuster enters into a

contract prior to Citizens Property Insurance Corporation making an initial offer,

As you are aware, 5B 408 was passed during the 2011 Legislative Session and included provisions that affected public
adjusters, There were several sections of S8 408 that related to public adjusters - ane of those provisions amended
Section 627.351, F.S. and only addresses Citizens Property Insurance Corporation. The other revisions in SB 408 that
relate to public adjusters are more general in nature and include a fee cap for supplemental claims and a technical
change requiring public adjusters to designate types of claims as supplemental, emergency or non-emergency. [See
Section 626.854 (11} (a) (b) 1., 2. and Section 626.8796 (2).] Amendments to Section 627.351, F.S., did not relate to
supplemental, emergency or non- emergency claims, but simply related to a fee cap on all claims made to Citizens.

Section 627.351(6)(a}{(6) now states:



“ For any claim filed under any )Iicy of [Citizens Property Insurance Corpo )on], a public adjuster may not charge,
agree to or accept any compensation, payment, commission, fee or other thing of value that is greater than 10% of the
additional amount actually paid in excess of the amount originally offered by Citizens on the claim. (Emphasis supplied.)

A review of this language reveals that Section 627.351(6){a)(6) is not, by its language, limited to supplemental

claims. Thus, it is the Department’s belief that based upon the plain language of the statute, a public adjuster, when
handling Citizens’ claims, is limited to receiving 10% of the difference between the original offer made by Citizens and
the amount actually paid regardless of when the public adjusting contract was executed.

Should you have additional questions regarding this response, please do not hesitate to contact me.
Best regards,
Laura

LAURA ANSTEAD

MANAGING ATTORNEY

DIVISION OF LEGAL SERVICES

THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES
200 EAST GAINES STREET

TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32329-0333

(850) 4134210

(850) 487-4907 FAX

L AURA ANSTEAD@MYFLORIDACFO.COM

DISCLAIMER: Please note that Flarida has a broad public records faw. Most wiitten communications to or from state officials regarding state business are considered o be public records
and will be made avaflable to the public and the media upon request. Therefore, your e-mail message may be subject to public disclosure.

From: Frank Artiles [mailto;frankartiles@me.com
Sent: Tuesday, September 27, 2011 10:37 PM

To: askDFS
Subject: Public Adjuster Fee Question:

Dear CFO,
| would like to know the Departments interpretation regarding your emailed statement:

Be advised that a public adjuster cannot charge, agree to or accept more than 10% of any amount paid in excess of
the original offer that is made by Citizens. If a public adjuster enters into a contract prior to Citizens making an offer,
then the "original offer” is when Citizens makes its first offer.

If a public adjuster enters into a contract prior to citizens making an offer then a Public Adjuster could charge 20% prior
to the original offer. Moreover, the language used is discussing supplemental or EXCESS that is why your interpretation
is an expansion of Legislative Intent.

I should know, | was on the house floor and committees. Need an explanation as soon as possible.

Frank Artiles J.D., LL.M
Pinnacle
305-305-2110



EAST COAST PUBLIC ADJUSTERS, INC,, a
Florida corporation,

PREMIER PUBLIC ADJUSTING, INC,, a
Florida corporation,

Plaintiffs,
v.

JEFF ATWATER in his capacity as CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER OF THE STATE, and
the FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF
FINANCIAL SERVICES.

Defendants.

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE
SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR
LEON COUNTY, FLORIDA

CASE NO. 2011-CA-842

[PROPOSED] ORDER

THIS CAUSE came before the Court upon Plaintiffs’ Motion for Leave to File Amended

Complaint and the Court having considered the Motion, and having been otherwise fully advised

in the premises it is hereby

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED as follows:;

1. The Motion is GRANTED.

2. Plaintiffs Amended Complaint shall be deemed filed as of the date of this Order.

DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers at Leon County, Florida, on this

December, 2012.

Copies furnished to:
All counsel of record

day of

HONORABLE TERRY LEWIS
CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE




